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Trustees' Report

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the charitable company
for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the purpose of both a trustees' report, and a

directors' report under company law.

The Trust operated two primary academies during 2023 - 2024 accommodating pupils aged 3 to 11. The total numbers of pupils

on roll within the Trust was 563 (including 45 nursery pupils) in the school census in Autumn 2023.

We are pleased to report that FY 2023-24 was another highly successful for the Learning for life Trust. Further details are
provided within this report. ln summary we successfully:

Deployed and embedded our School Support and lmprovement Programme allowing schools to use the framework to
collaborate and identify areas of strength and where support is needed. The targeted work in this area led to schools achieving
strong academic results for our pupils with particularly strong improvements at Broughton. ln addition, both schools received
monitoring visits from OFSTED and continue to be 'Good' schools, receiving strong feedback.

Used our collaborative approach to supporting safeguarding, health and safety and SEND in schools. This programme of
support ensures school leaders are confident and competent in achieving compliance and best-practice in these key areas

Completed a successful audit programme at both Trust and School levelwith particularly strong results in relation to risk
management.

Continued to maintain a stable and strong financial position following another year of sound financial management.

Successfully won a Condition lmprovement Fund bid to improve electricaland fire safety at Fairfield Primary School. This
proiect further improves the estate and reduces the Trust's estates risk.

Strengthened relationships between the schools. Schools and school leaders are now working effectively and autonomously to
support one another. This has allowed us to share expertise, support developments and consider evidence-based research as a

wider group leading to impactful changes within schools.

Continued to nurture strong relationships with more schools in the local area. This led to a number of enquiries throughout the
year and increased interest in the Trust. The Trust also received a number of requests to provide support to Local Authority
schools and provides this support through service level agreements.

Completed a full due diligence program and submitted an application to the Department for Education to expand the Trust
from September 2024 with an additional school (Secondary) and an expanded central team.
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Obiects and Aims
The Trust is passionate about ensuring each and every one of its pupils achieves their ftJll potential and places them at the
heart of its system. In doing so, the Trust fulfils it's charitable objective of providing education for the public benefit in the
United Kingdom, and promoting a broad and balanced curriculum for all students.

The Trust continue to focus on the development of strategies and practices to ensure all the pupils receive the very best
education through strong leadership, along with innovative and energetic teaching provided by happy and well-supported
practitioneG. Whilst always seeking to develop and improve, this strategy has been very successful as is demonstrated later in
the attainment section of this report. We operate high performing schools who are always on a quest for further development
and improvement. with such strength academically and financially, the Trust has been able to effectively bring another school
into the Trust whilst diligently exploring growth options for the future.

ln order to achieve this, the Trust focusses on its Vision, Mission and Values as follows:

Vision: We will create an effective partnership of ambitious schools collaborating to ensure that everybody is supported in
reaching their full potential.

Mission: Our ambition is to be recognised as a Trust who serve their school community in delivering creative, ambitious and
exciting education practices, allowing pupils and staff to thrive and succeed. Our schools will be the first choice for their local
community and will ensure that all children leave our care having achieved their very best and ready for the next stage of their
life.

Values:
. lntegrity - We will behave ethically, always working with trust, transparency and honesty

lndividuality - We recognise that in order to develop a stron& inclusive whole, our schools need to retain their own distinct
identity.

Ambition - We will always strive to offer the best possible suppo4 resource and facilities to our schools allowing them to
deliver the most inspiring curriculum offer for the community they serve.

Creative - We are committed to developing traditional and new education practices in an innovative way, allowing our
schools to deliver what is best for their community.

Supportive - We always support and nurture our community of schools ensuring that we are able to achieve our full
potential.

lnspiring - We aim to inspire everybody associated with the Trust to be the very best they can be.
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Obiectives, Strateghs and Activities
With such stability and strength in the Trust, the platform is in place to allow it to move towards achieving its vision. A clear

development plan and road map which sets out the key actiyities and targets for the Trust is in place and monitored regularly.
Achievement ofthese strategic obje€tives will allow the Trust to develop and grow further, includinS developinB capacity for
groMh, ensuring strong leadership and governance across the Trust, alongside always seeking to improve the educational
provision within.

The key areas of strategic development for the Trust are :

, School Development & Delivery
2 Leadership & Governance
3 MAT Growth
4 lnfrastructure, Finance & Estates

Strategic obiectives are cascaded down to the schools to implement in accordance with it's own School Development Plan

which is created by its Senior Leadership Team and Local Governing Body. The Trust then continues to support the delivery of
these plans throuShout the year.

The Trust has focussed on embeddint the centrdlisation of systems and structures whilst exploring future growth opportunities
and pursuing their obiectives of working together to ensure pupils continue to receive excellent teaching and learning and

enioy a broad and engaging curriculum offer. With a commitment to the continuous professional development and wellbeing
of all staff, along with a flexible govemance suppon structure, the Trust was able to support the schools in maintaining and

improving performance (see performance section).

E(periencing the benefits of collaborative working durinS the year, the Trust remains committed to continuing on its groMh

iourney through developing a wider partnership of schools. ln preparation for this, the Trust has continued to strengthen its
govemance structures and procedures; it is also continuint its recruitment campaign to attract additional Trustees to enhance
the existing skillset and expand Trustee capacity.

The Trust has in place a stronS and robust infrastructure which will ensure a financially viable and sustainable Trust. Oversight
of the finances continues to be monitored by the Audit, Finance & Risk committee, meeting to review Trust funds, budgetint
and spends as well as reviewing and managing trust risks and audit reports. This year, the Trust utilised additional funding to
expand its capacity through the centralisation of contracts and the investment in solutions to allow for future expansion of the
Trust.

The Trust has continued to assess the condition of the estate and support schools with their effective management. We
continue to use the Condition lmprovement Fund to attract funding to our hithest priority areas and dedicate funds to support
this programme.

Public Benefit
The Trustees have given consideration to the charity commission's general tuidance on public benefit and in particular to its
supplementary guidance on education. The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the
charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers
or duties. They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's alms and obiectives and in planning its future
activities.

The Trust's obiective is to advance for the public benefit education in the Unlted Kingdom, in particular but without preiudice
to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing, maintalning, carrying on, mana8ing and developing schools offerinB a broad
and balanced curriculum which helps all students to fulfil their potential.
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Constitution
The Trust was incorporated on 16 July 2015. The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust,

The Trustees of Learning for Life Trust are also the directoG for the purposes of company law. Details of the Trustees who
served throu8hout the year, except as noted, are included in the Reference and Administrative Details.

M€mbers' Liability
Each member ofthe charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Trust in the event of it being wound up
while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding f10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member.

Trustee and govemor's lndemnities
ln respect ofthe trustee and governors, the Trust holds professional indemnity insurance via the Department of Education,s
risk protection arrangements.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
Trustees are appointed for a four year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the Chief Executive Officer ofthe
Trust. Subiect to remaining eligible to be a particular type ofTrustee, any Trustee can be re-appointed or re-elected. Any
Trustee seeking re-appointment or re-election submits a iustification for the Boards consideration. When appointinB new
Trustees, the Board will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of existing Trustees in order to ensure that the
Board has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the development and expansion ofthe Trust.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the lnduction and Training of Trustees
New Trustees receive indudion training to detailtheir legal obligations under Charity and Company Law and the content ofthe
Articles of Association. They receive an induction pack which includes copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts,
budgets, plans and other documents that they need to undertake their role as Trustees. They have meetings with the Chair of
Trustees to provide support as required. All Trustees are provided with safeguarding training and are given the opportunity to
sit training courses through multiple sources and throughout the year are kept up to date on relevant issues and changes in
legislation.
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Trustees' Report (continuedl

Organisational Structure
The members of Learning for Life Trust are the subscribers to the memorandum of association. They have the power to appoint
and remove trustees.

The Trustees are either appointed by the members or co-opted by the Board ofTrustees. The Trustees are responsible for the
three core strategic governance functions:

. Ensuring clarity ofvision, ethos and strategic direction;

. Holdingthe executive leaderto accountforthe educational performance ofthe academy and its pupils, andthe
performance management of staff;

. Overseeing the financial performance ofthe academies and making sure it is money well spent.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that the charitable companv achieves its objectives as well as compliance with charity
and company law and the Trust's funding agreement.

The Trust delegates specific finance and audit responsibilities to the Trust's audi! finance & risk committee

Governance functions are delegated to the Local Governing Body ("LGB") in accordance with the Trust's scheme of Delegation
The Trustees appoint the Chair of the LGB who submits information on Key Performance lndicators to the Trustee Board in
accordance with governance reporting procedures.

The Trustees appoint the Chief Executive Officer and the Headteachers. The Headteachers are responsible for managing the
schools on a daily basis supported by their appointed Senior Leadership Teams.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key manatement pefsonnel
A panel ofTrustees, in coniunction with an external adviser, set challenging and aspirational objectives for the Chief Executive
Officer ofthe Trust who is also the Headteacher of Fairfield Primary School. These are monitored during the performance

review cycle and assessed by an external evaluation. Pay recommendations are put to the Board of Trustees for their
consideration.

Pay and remuneration ofthe academies other key management personnel is set by the Trustees and reviewed annually. Pay
scales are taken from the School Teachers Pay and Conditions document for teaching staff or from the cumbria County Council

iob families pay and grading structure for support staff. Objectives are set according to the priorities set out in the strategic
plan.

Trade union fucility time
The academy trust has no relevant union officials.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Learning for Life Trust is made up ofthe following schools:

Broughton Primary School
Fairfield Primary School

There are no other connected organisations howeverthe Trust works very closely with a group of schools sharing good practice
and undertakiog Peer to Peer reviews with each school.
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Strategic obiective - Quality of provision
(ey Academic Performance lndicators - FAIRF|ELD pRlMARy SCHOOT

The Trust has continued to support Fairfield and, due to unwavering dedication and commitment to pupil welfare, suppon
experience and outcomes, performance remains consistently high. Fairfield continues to be a leading example of provision in
Phonics and is a 'champion school' for the Little wandle Letters and sounds Revised Programme. This status means the school
is a national leading example for effective implementation and delivery and supports other schools with their phonics. ln
addition, the school now has national Literacy and Maths Hub support practitioners.

Pupils Achieving Erpected Pupils Achieving Highel

School 1(s1

Result
School 1(s2

Resuh

School l(sl
Result

School xs2
Result

Reading AM 77% fi% 2Ax
Writing a2% 77% 2i% IW
Spellin& Punctuation and Grammar 72% 2a%
Mathematics a5% 79% 2a% 26%
Reading, Writing and Mathematics combined 7A% % t3x t6%

Year 1 Phonica Screening Results 2022 Pupils meeting the expected standard
School results 88%

EARTY YEARS DATA

% of pupils
Good Level of Development a2%

Key Academic Pedormance lndicators - BROUGHTOT{ pRtMARY SCHOOL

Joining the Trust has allowed Broughton to gain support in a number of ways. Critically, it allowed the senior leaders to use
more of their capacity to focus on school development whilst drawing on experience from the Trust. This led to a significant
improvement in outcomes in some areas of the school, particularly Key Stage 2. The School has also been able to access
funding from the local English Hub to improve Phonics provision through their chosen Phonics Programme.

Pupils Achievim ErDected Pupils Achievin! Hisher

School l(S1

Result
School 1(s2

Resuh

School Ksl
Resuft

School 1(52

Result

Reading 74% a7% 26% t5%
Writing 79% 9t% t6% 26%
Spelling, Punctuation and Grammar 83%
Mathematics a9% 7A% 32%
Readin& Writing and Mathematics combined 5a% 74% t6%

Year 1 Phonics Screening Results 2022 Pupils meeting the expected sbndard
School results 9n6

% of pupils
Good Level of Development a69l

EARTY YEARS DATA
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Trustees' Report (continuedl

Strategic objective - School lmprovement & Delivery
To ensure that standards are continually assessed, the Trust requires its schools to operate a rigorous programme of
monitoring activities. lt also encourages schools and LGBs to reflect upon their performances and develop SMART development
plans.

ln Fairfield Primary School, these activities are undertaken by the Headteacher and other members ofthe senior leadership
team and middle leaders. The school was able to deliver a fiJll and robust moderation and monitoring programme and
achieved clear and successful developments across the school. The school's self-evaluation remains at 'good' or 'outstanding' in
all areas, which was confirmed during an OFSTED monitoring visit in November 2023. The school has continued to strive
towards achieving its vision through successful delivery of its school development aims.

Broughton Primary School continued to focus on school development and delivery and governance. With strong leadership and
a clear improvement plan in place, the school was able to deliver some excellent improvements to their whole school

outcomes. The school received an OFSTED monitoring visit in February 2024 and inspectors confirmed the school remained
'Good', From a wider perspective, all surveys of stakeholders report positive results and the school has I clear development
pathway whilst offering strenSth to the Trust.

Strategic objective - Leadership & Governance
Throughout the year, the leadership teams have continued to perform at a high level. Ensuring that the children and staff were
supported through another year in education. All plans were evidence-based approaches with effective plannin&
implementation and evaluation. ln addition, they continued to provide support to local schools across a range of areas.
Through strong and effective leadership the pupils within Broughton and Fairfield continued to receive an excellent education
from staff who reported on feeling secure and appreciated, The Trust provided the leadership team with support during this
time, adaptinS governance practices to remain dynamic and responsive to the changing environment.

Strategic objective - MAT Growth
The Trust continued to nurture relationships with local schools and provided formal support through service level agreements
where appropriate. lnline with its groMh plan, the Trust performed a full and complete due diligence programme on a local
secondary school and submitted a successful application to the Department for Education. With the Trust expanding further in
September 2024, the Trust focussed on expanding and re-structuring the Executive team to allow for a smooth and successful
expansion. As the Trust Board continues to strengthen its capacity and capability, along with refining its policies and
procedures, it will continue to focus on embedding systems and structures whilst supporting Schools to provide educational
excellence. Future Srowth opportunities will be assessed against the risk policy in order to ensure that we can continue to
support our schools whilst building a platform on which to grow in a sustainable fashion.

Strategic obiective - lnfrastructure & Finance
The Trust remains in a strong financial position and has had a long track record of secure and stable finances. The Trust
continues to work with its s-year strategic financial plan with a financial structure allowing for sustainable growth. Plans also
include wider financialareas including estates management and maintenance, ICT improvements and staffwellbeing. The Trust
was successful in its application to the 2023/24 Condition lmprovement Fund (ClF) for an electrical and fire safety bid at
Fairfield but unsuccessful on bids for Broughton Primary School. The Trust continues to assess the condition of its estate and
submit bids in relation to high priority works within. The Trust aims to retain a ring-fenced fund for submission support in
future years.

Going Concem
After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concem basis in
preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption ofthe Boing concern basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.
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Trustees' Report (continued)

Financial Review

FinancialR€view
The Academy Trust's accounting period is Ot September 2023 to 3l August 2024

During the period under review, the majority of the Trusfs income was obtained from the DfE in the form of recurrent grants,
the use of which was restricted to the Trust's educational activities. The grants received during the accounting period and the
associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

During the year, the Trust received total revenue funding for charitable activities of €3,184,020, of which €2,366,824 was from
the DfE in the form of GAG funding (68%).

Revenue expenditure was 83,437,479, ol which staffing is the main area of cost at f2 ,655,ll2 (77%1.

Reserves Policy
At the end of the period the trustees were holding f207,567 in restricted general funds (GAG €207,567) and €288,097 in
unrestricted funds, which are within DfE guidelines. The trustees review the level of reserves annually as pan of its budget
planning cycle, and aims to carry forward a prudent level of resources from General Annual Grant as a contingency for future
unforeseen circumstances, and as contributions towards future capital improvement programmes.

The Trust had a reserves policy in place that sets a reserves target of 8%, representing 1 month of annual expenditure for each
academy. Fairfield Primary School currently meet the requirement ofthe reserves policy. Broughton Primary School is working
towards achieving this goal.

Furds in Deficit
There are no funds in deficit at the year end

lnvestment Policy
ln a period of financial uncertainty and historically low interest rates, the Trusfs policy has been to maximise liquidity and
minimise risk. This policy will be kept under review.

The Trust is operating in a period of considerable financial uncertainty with regard to public funding and global issues and is

managing this risk through long term financial plannin& appropriate govemance and robust financial management and
monitoring.
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Financial and Rlsk Management Obiectlres and Policies
The Trustees are responsible for the management ofthe risks the Trust is exposed to, and have undertaken a review of risks

associated with its activities. The maior rlsks that have been identified are recorded on the Trust's Risk ReSister, with
appropriate mititation measures. The Audit Finance & Risk committee monitor progress on a termly basis.

Trust estate manatement
The Trust works with extemal specialist to assess and appraise the estate in relation to prioritisation of maintenance and

development. The Trust also engages with specialist firms to submit bids to the Condition lmprovement Fund on its behalf. ln

addition, the Trust has an overarching Heahh and Safety policy and appoints a Health and Safety Consultant to provide schools

with appropriate guidance and policy in relation to management and regularly audits the schools for compliance.

Principal Fundlnt Sources
The majority of the Trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Local Authority in

the form of grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes.

Fundraising

The Trust does not en8ate with professional fundraisers to undertake any fundraising activities on its behalf. The Trust ftom
time to time carries out minor levelfundraising activity to raise funds forthe Trust whereby students seek voluntary donations

from parents and the local community.

Ptans for Future Periods

The educational landscape is changing at pace, however, the Trust will be diligent in its pursuit of its vision to ensure every chlld

reaches their full potential. The Trust passionately believes that strong local collaboration between schools will enhance the

educational provision to all children and plans are in place to pursue this attracting high quality leaders, teachers and support
staff to support to deliverthis vision.

We will continue to expand as a Trust and develop and form further relationships with local schools in line with our growth
plans ensuring that our vision and yalues remain at the heart of decisions.

Auditor

lnsofar as the trustees are aware

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable companv's auditor is unaware: and

. the trustees have taken all steps that they ouSht to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditor is aware ofthat information.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order ofthe members ofthe board oftrustees and

signed on its behalf by:

organ
of Trustees

*lrulz4 Date
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Governance Statement

Scope of Responsiblllty
As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring thatthe l-earning for Life Trust has an effective and
appropriate systems of control, financial and otherwise. However such a rystem is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk offailure to achieve business obiectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account ofthe guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework
for governance. This information has been shared with all layers of governance and it informs the plannin& recruitment and
decision making processes within the Trust.

The Board ofTrustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the chief Executive officer, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assi8ned to it in the funding agreement between the Learning for Life
Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.

Govemors are also responsible for reporting to the Board ofTrustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in intemal
control.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Statement of
Trustees' Responsibilities.

The Board ofTrustees formally met 8 times during the year and held an Annual General Meeting. This allowed Trustees to
maintain a strong financial and performance oversight ofthe Trust whilst working on development plans. ln addition, the
established Audit & Risk Committee met O times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Trustee board was as follows:

Trust Board Meetings

Me€tings
attended

9
8

9
9

9
8
5

Trustee
Mr B Cook
Dr H Morgan
Mr O Nicols
Mr C Steele

Me€tings
attended

6
4
5
6

Out of a
posible

6
5
6
6

Attendance during the year at meetings of the schools' Local Govemlnt Body Meefings was as follows

Trustee
Dr H Morgan
Mr O Nicols
Mr C Steele
Mr B Cook
Mr J Brettle
Mrs M Desmond
Mr P Terry

School
Fairfield Primary School

Broughton Primary School

Out of a

rrossible
9
9

9
9

9
9
5

Audit, Finance & Risk Comnittee
The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee is a suFcommittee of the main Board ofTrustees, its purpose is to assist the Trust
board in meeting its obliSations under the Academies Financial Handbook by directing the trusfs programme of internal
scrutiny and ensuring that risks are being addressed appropriately through internal scrutiny, and reporting to the Trust board
on the adequacy of the trust's internal control framework, including financial and non-financial controls and management of
risks.

'6 
Attendance

7r
91
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Board of Trustees work, performance and chantes in composition
The Trust has continued to develop and refine centralised services and functions, including finance and management

information s"ystems. The Trust has developed solid foundations for future growth and ensured that future expansion proiects

are seamless transitions.

The Board has further develop€d reportint to the board by improvinB the quality of data and information in relation to key

areas such as: School attainment, School support & improvement, Safeguardint and Finance. This information ensures that the
board are able to fulfil their duties effectively and are able to support the schools in developing further and work towards
achieving its aims.

The Trust continued to review, develop and implement key policy and procedures as part of its improvement plans. The Trust
has a focussed and ambitious development plan and is exploring growth options in a sustainable manner. The Board submitted
an application forfurther expansion in September 2024 and the application was approved. The Board then focussed on
ensuring the Executive Team had sufficient capacity and competencies in place ready for transition.

ln order to strengthen communication between local governing boards and the trust board, the Trust established a chairs'

meeting. The group meet termly to discuss Trust and school updates and to share successes and challenges. Priorto each Trust

Board meeting, a meeting ofthe Audit, Finance and Risk Committee is held. The committee works to monitor and manage the
risks associated with the Trust and use this knowledge to inform the works of the auditing provision. The committee also

receives and responds to any outcomes from the audit function, both internal and external.

Co,tfllc,s ol irrtercst
The Trust keeps an uPtodate register of interests at all levels within the organisation to ensure all conflicts are monitored. The

Trust capture information annually and upon appointment of new MembeG, Trustees, Govemors or Senior Staff. Any

declarations of interest are announced at the start of meetings and any related party transactions are monitored through the
finance system. The Trust also have an Audit, Finance & Risk committee who monitor any conflicts of interest.

Meetlngs
Full Trust Board meetings occur every half term (6 times per year). Prior to the Trust Board meetings, Local Governing Board

meetings and Audit, Finance and Risk meetings occur to ensure that outcomes and proposals can pass to the Board in a timely
fashion. The Board plan their annual meetings in advance to ensure timely returns. An AGM takes place each December. The

Trust, LGBs and Audit Risk and Finance committee can also meet in response to any issues that arise.

Got€monce Review
. The Trustees Board Members sit solely on the Trust Board to give clear separation in the layers of governance.
. The Chairs of both the Trust Board and the Local Governing Body meet on a termly basis.
. The Trust regularly review key policy and procedures within the Trust as part of its improvement plans.
. The Trust has identified that in order to support Trust expansion, greater Truste€ capacity is required. The Trust is

continuing on a targeted recruitment campaign to ensure all areas highlighted in the competency framework are covered
. The Trust appoints a link Trustee to Safetuarding and SEND.
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Review ofValue for Money
As accounting officer, the chief Executive officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to educational and wider societal
outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer consideB how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good lralue for money during each academic
year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, includint the use of benchmarking data
where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

' As a high proportion of the schools revenue expenditure is spent on staff, the school undertakes an annual review of its
curriculum offer and its staffint requirements to ensure it is appropriate for the size of school.

' Condition lmprovement Fund bids were tendered by HuSgon Associates with specialist knowledge for the ctF proiects. The
tender process complies with the Trusts Finance policy and public procurement regulations.

. All school service level agreements reviewed annually to ensure best value for money.. Utilising lntegrated Curriculum and Financial planning to inform decision making.

Throughout the Year, the Trust, supported by external consultants, centralised a number of key contracts in order to provide
administrative efficiency and financial savings to the Trust and the schools. we also compiled a Trust-wide contracts register to
be able to review all key contracts at the point of expiryto ensure we achieve best-value upon renewal.

The Trust has prioritised funds to ensure that the estate is safe and well-maintained. We have appointed an external contractor
to support the Trust with estates management and CIF bids and have ring-fenced funds to support the bids in the 2024/25
round to target improvements at Broughton primary School.

The Purpose of the System ot lr emal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level ratherthan to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives. lt can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance ofeffectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of
Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood ofthose risks bein8 realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in
Learning for Life Trust for the period 01 september 2023 to 3l Autust 2024 and up to the date of approvalofthe annual report
and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk
The board of trustees has reviewed the key risk to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is ofthe view that there is
a formal on-8oang process for identifoin& evaluating and managing the academy trust's significant risks that has been in place
for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approvalofthe annual report and linancial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.
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Govemance Statement (continued)

The Risl and Control Framework
The Trusfs rystem of intemal control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative

procedures including the segregation of duties and a rystem of delegation and accountability. ln particular, it includes:

. comprehenslve budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly financial reports which are

reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
. regular reviews by the Board of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase

plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
. setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

. clearly defined purchasing (assct purchase or capital investment) Suidelines;

. delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

. identification, retular review and management of risks at school and Trust level.

lnt€mal Scrutlny
The Trust utilises two formal audit functions to ensure compliance and strong performance in relation to the operation and

performance of the orSanisation. The Trust uses SKL Education Consultancy to perform the internalaudit. The scope ofthe
intemal audit work is guided by the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee. The Trust use Saint & Co to perform the external audit

role.
The lnternal audit function provides independent assurance to the board that controls and risk management are effective. The

external auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial

systems. ln particular the checks carried out across all audits in the current period included:

. Finance Policy & Scheme of Delegation

. Cyber resilience and strategy

. Payrolltesting

. SEND & Safeguarding policy/nrategy

. Budgeting processes/assumptions

. Whistleblowing and other policies/implementation

. Risk Management

On a termly basis, audit reports are considered by the board of trustees on the operation ofthe systems of control and on the

discharge ofthe board of trustees' financial responsibilities.

The internal auditor has delivered their schedule ofworks as planned and any recommendations have been considered. The

board received three rigorous internal audit reports, covering a wide range of areas and acted swiftly upon any

recommendations.

The Trust chose to use the above method of intemal scrutiny to ensure independent assurance of financial and non-financial

controls. lt also allowed the Trust to receive an evaluation of suitability to its controls whiln gaining advice on how to develop

further.
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Governance Statement {continued)

Review of Effectlveness
fu accounting officer, the chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the internal auditor / reviewer;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

' the work of the leaders within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the intemal
control framework.

The accountin8 officer has been advised of the implications ofthe result of their review of the system of intemal controlby the
audit, finance and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system as in
Dlace.

Conclusion
Eased on the advice of the audit, finance and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board oftrustees is ofthe opinion
that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control,

Approved by order ofthe members of the Trustee Body and signed on its behalf by

MrC
Accounting Office.

rIlrul2-k Date
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As accounting officer of Leaming for Life Trust, I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of
trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agenc.y (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with
terms and conditions of all fundin& includinS for estates safety and mana8ement, under the funding agreement between the
academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements
ofthe Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilhies for estates safety and management.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board oftrustees are able to identiry any material irregular or improper use of allfunds
by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academv trust's funding
agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2023.

I confirm that no instances of material irretularity, impropriety or ftJnding non-compliance have been discovered to date. lf any
instances are identified after the date ofthis statement these will be notified to the board oftrustees and ESFA.

Mr C Steele
Accounting Officel

t7 tz 2-+ Date
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The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by
the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting standards (United Kingdom 6enerally Accepted Accounting
Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application ofresources, including its income and expenditure, for
that period. ln preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Directio n 2023 to 2024. make iudgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements

' prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accountint records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2005. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets ofthe charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other
controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible
for ensuring grants received from ESFA,/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity ofthe corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination offinancial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

organ
r of Trustees

t+ IL L+ Date
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financaal Statements to the Members of the Learning for Life Trust

Oplnlon

We have audited the financial statements of the Learning for Life Trust forthe year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the
Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance 5heet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of lreland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

ln our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

. have b€en prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

. have b€en properly prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audito/s responsibilities for the audit of the financial

statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the FRC s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conduslons relating to going concem
ln auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trusteed use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation ofthe financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Learning for Life Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a

period of at least 12 months ftom when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report including the trustees' repor! other than the
financial statements and our audito/s report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within
the annual report. lt includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Report of the Directors and Strategic Report and
the Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repon, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. lf, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial statements to the Members of the Learning for Life Trust
{continued)

Opinion on other matteE prescribed by the Conpanles Act 2m6

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

' the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

MatteB on which we are rcquired to report by excepton

ln the light of the knowledge and understandint of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report ofthe Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect ofthe following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

' adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation ofthe financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable to
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statementt the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members ofthe Leaming for Life Trust
(continuedt

Audhor's responsibilfties for the audlt of the f,nancial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the lndependent Auditors that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSAs (UK)

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud, The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, includinB ftaud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, is

detailed below:

. the engagement partner ensured that the enSagement team collectively had the appropriate competence, capabilities and

skills to identifo or reco8nise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other
manaSement;

. we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial

statements or the operations ofthe company;

. we assess€d the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
mana8ement and inspecting legal correspondence; and

. identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to
instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility ofthe company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an

understanding of how ftaud might occur, by:

. making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual,

suspected and alleged fraud;
. To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controlt we:

. performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

. tested joumal entries to identiry unusual transactions;

. assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accountint estimates set out in the accountint
policies were indicative of potential bias; and

. investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

ln response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which included,
but were not limited to:

agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlyinS supporting documentation;
reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;
enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and regulations are from
financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance, Auditing standards also limit the
audit procedures required to identify non{ompliance with lavys and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other
management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may involve
deliberate concealment or collusion,



This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part lE ofthe
companies Act 2006. our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an audito/s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable companrs
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Learning for Life Trust
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lndependent Auditor's Report on the Financial statements to the Members ofthe LearninE for Life Trust
(continuedl

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit ofthe financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
council's website at: www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use ofout report

ttle (Senior Statutory Auditor)

nd on behalf of

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audito6
The Old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria
LA22 O8T

Date

t*

arren
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lndependent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to the Learnint for Ufe Trust and

the Education and Skills Funding Agenry

ln accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated LSl7Ol2O24 and turther to the requirements of the Education

and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carried out an

engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by the Learning for Llfe

Trust during the period 01 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and

the financial transadions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Respective Responsibilities of the Leamln! for Ufu Trust's A.counting Officer and the Reponing Accountant

The Accounting Omcer is responsible, under the requirement ofthe Learning for Life Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 30 July 2015 and the Academies Financial Handbool! extant from 1 September 2023, for
ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial

transactions conform to the authorities which Bovern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United l(ingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements ofthe Academies

Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anwhing has come to our attention in carrying out our work which

suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the p€riod 01 September 2023 to 31

August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament orthat the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for ExtemalAuditors and Reporting Accountant

ofAcademy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The obiective of a limited assurance entatement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in

order to provide us with suflicient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on re8ularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matteE that might be identified in a reasonable

assurance engatement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety ofthe academy

trusfs income and expenditure.

The work undenaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

the school resource management self-assessment checklist (SRMSAT) was obtained and considered;
responses to the top 10 'mustd for chairs and other trustees from the AFH was obtained and considered;
having a general awareness of regularity and propriety whilst conducting the statutory audit function;
reviewing if extra-contractual severance payments have been made in accordance with the Handbook;
reviewing if borrowing agreements, including leases to ensure they have been made in accordance with the Handbook;
reviewing the minutes ofthe meeting ofthe main committees during the year;
reviewing expenditure to check that it was not ultra vires to the charitable objectives;
obtaining trustee / governors declaration of interests;
where present obtaining the accounting officer's file.
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lndependent Reportint Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to the Learning for Llfe Trust and
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

ln the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period ol september 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govem them,

Use ofour report

This report is made solely to Learning for Life Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms ofour engagement letter. our work
has been undertaken so that we might state to Learning for Life Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than Learning for Life Trust and ESFA for our work, for this repoG orfor the conclusion we have formed.

Darren Little (Reporting Accountant)

For and on behalf of

Saint & Co

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
The Old Police Station
Church Street
Ambleside
Cumbria

LA22 O8T

Date
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statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

(lncludint lncome and Cxpenditure Accountl
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€Note

2

7

Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Genelal

Funds

7,563
7,974

ResEicted
Fixed Asset

Funds

Total
2024

Total
2021

tEe t

2,25

Total

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities

Academy trust educational operations 8

lncome and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants

Transfer from predecessor trust
Charitable activities

Funding for the Academy's
educational operations

Other tradinB activities
lnvestments

Other trading activities

Total

Net income / (erpendtturel

Transfers between funds

(xhcr r€cognised galns and (losses|

Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined

benefit pension schemes

Net movement in funds

1,305 10,495 903,667 915,469 730,168

3 188,389 3,295,631 3,484,020 3,297,424

4
5

5,816 L4,379
7,974

17,727
1,O24

__!99232 3,372,943 903,667 4,4]lj,42 4,046,347

165,s52 3,270,354 462,249 4,298,155 3,324,2s8

1,513 1,513 1,515

6 ___18?Jq5_ __3,Z9E1_ ____8628_

32,767 42,549 41,478

11 (38,389) 3s,s89 2,800

4,299-668 3,325,873

L76,774 720,474

(48,0OO)

3OJ?8 - M,218
23 (48,000) sls,ooo

16,2221 64,774 7,239,474

Reconciliation of tunds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds car ed foruard

18 294,379 t77,389 1,823,620 2,295,328 1,055,854

18 288,097 _____2O7-A_ 1,857,a3a 2,363,502 ___2/lEj?3_

All of the academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above financial periods



Learning for Life Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2024

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
lnvestments

Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: Amount falling due within one year
N€t current assets

Total assets less curent liabilities

Defined benefit pension scheme asset/(liability)

Total net assets

Funds of the academy t.ust:
Restricted funds

Fixed asset funds
ceneralfunds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Note

t4

2024

5,000
588,679
468,538

I,162,277

(571,891)

1,867,838

207,567

248,@7

MI
Accounting Offic.r

Pate 25

Company r{umb€r 0!1690231

20iB 202j3
EE

1,807,499

7,407,499

s,000
77,785

678,597
755,382

1267,ssll
487,429

2,29532A

2,29532a

7,423,620
777,389

2,OOl.0O9

294,319

ff
2024

1,773,L76

7,773,176

590,326

2,363,502

_3,3$,S02_

2,O75,405

288,O97

2,363,502

15
15

t7

23

Unrestricted income funds
Generalfund

Total unrestricted funds

18

18
78,23

18

18

Total funds

The financial statements were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on ..t.7..fi{2*nbei'.. ZO2*t ..-
and signed on their behalfby:

n
Trustees

294,379

_2,295328
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statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 Autust 2024

Reconciliation of net income / (exp€ndhuie) to net cash flow ftom oper.ting activlties

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial

activities)

Adjusted Jor:
Depreciation
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
lnterest receivable
Defined benefit pension scheme costs less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme net pension finance costs

Defined benefit pension scheme oblitation inherited
Fixed assets transferred from predecessor trust on transfer
Decrease/(lncreasellncrease in stocks

Decrease/(lncrease) in debtors
lncrease/(Decrease) in creditors

t{et cash provlded by / (used inl opetatlng Activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowing
Cash inflows from new borrowing
Net cash provlded by / (used in) finandnt aaivities

Page 26

2024 2023

776,t74 720,474

Ef

u,632
(891,667)

(7,974!
(49,0O0)

1,000

(615,894)
304,338

84,680
(48,s73)
(t,o24l

(20,00o)
24,ooo

164,000

1743,9471
(2,s00)

794
42,o74

(1,0s3,391) 2ssp24

I,O24
cash flows from lnvesting activitles
lnterest receivable
Proceeds from sale oftangible fixed assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Less: Assets acquired from other predecessor trust on transfer
Capital grants from OfE and other capital income
t{et cash provlded by / (used inl lnvening activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents ln the reporting perlod

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

Cash and cash equivahnts at I S€ptember 2023

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2024

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

cash in hand and at bank
Notice deposits (less than 3 months)
Total cesh and cash equivalents

Analysis ofchanges in net debt l Sept 23 Cash flows

678,597 (210,059) 468,538

7,974

(s0,309)

8g1,67

(824,892].

743,94t
8,573

(31,3s4)8/.3,332

(210,0s9) 228,s7O

67A,597 450,027

u3,332 (31,354)

468,538 67a,597

1 Sept 23
I

678,597

cash flows
E

(210,0s9)

31 Aug 24
€

468,538

f
678,597

E

(210,059)

Other non-

€sh changes
t

31 Aug 24

E
/t58,538cash

Loans falling due within one year
l-oans falling due after more than a year
Finance lease obligations
Total 67A,597 (210,0s91

New

agreements
t

/t58,5:t8
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

Page 27

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis oI Prepa.atlon
The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
lreland (FRs 102), the Accounting and Reporting by charities: Statement of Recommended practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the Ul( and Republic of lreland
(FRS 102) (charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the charities Act 2011
and the Companies Act 2005.

The trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 1OZ.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional cunency ofthe entity.

Going Concern
The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going
concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for
issue ofthe financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the forese€able future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability
to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements.

lncomint R€sources
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and
the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended durint the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. where income is
received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income
and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are
met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

' General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable
and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

' Other government grants are also recognised on a receivable basis. For all grants the balance of income received for
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.

' capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant, Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recotnised when
there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life ofthe asset on which they are expended.

' Donations, legacies and other forms of voluntary income are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no
performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

. other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the academy
trust has provided the goods or services.
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Ilotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 lcontinued)

1. Statement of Ar.ountint Policies (Condnuedl

Donated goodt facilities and services. Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected
proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. lf it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in

stock and 'lncome from other trading actlvitles'. Upon sale, the value ofthe stock is charged against'lncome from
othertrading activities' and the proceeds are recognised as'lncome from other trading adivities'. Where it is

impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial

statements until they are sold. This income is reco8nised within 'lncome from other trading activities'.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in

which case the cost ofthe item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a

corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useftJl economic

life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Transfer of exlsting academies into the academy trust
Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust, the transferred net
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership
pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into the
academy trust within donations and capitalgrant income to the net assets acquired.

Deferred lncome
Grants and other funding received forthe academy's educational activities for a period spanningthe year end are deferred
pro-rata to the relevant periods in order to match the funding to the period in which the costs of charitable activities are

incurred.

Expendhure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a letal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benelit to a third party, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount ofthe obligation can be

measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs

and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity
are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those astivities on a basis consistent with the use of
resources.

. Charitable Activities - These are costs incurred on the academy trusfs educational operations, including support costs

and costs relating to the Bovernance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 {continuedt

1. StatementofAccountintpolicies(Continuedl
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Tangible Fixed Assets
Tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net ofdepreciation and any provision for impairment.

The capitalisation policy of items as tangible fixed assets is single items costing f2,OOO or more.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid ofspecific grants, either from the government or from the
private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use ofthe asset, the related grants are
credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged direstly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged
to the unrestricted fund.

Tangible fixed assets transferred on conversion to Academy status have been included in the accounts at valuation

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of
each asset on a straight-line/reducing balance basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold property - 50 years straight line
Leasehold land - straight line over remaining lease term
Leasehold buildings - straight line over economic life (ranging from 25-30 years - updated in 2ot9 from 15-20 years)
Plant & machinery - 15 years straight line
lnformation communications & technology equipment - 3 years straight line
Furniture fittings & equipment - 5 years straight line
Motor vehicles - 25% reducing balance

Assets are depreciated in full in the year of purchase

The total depreciation charge is allocated to teaching costs and administration and support costs pro-rata to the number of
employees.

When a new academyjoins the trust the property is depreciated on a straight line basis over its remaining useful economic
life at the date oftransfer. All other assets are depreciated in accordance with the trusfs accounting policy for ea€h asset
class as if they were new assets on the date of transfer.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought
into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. shortfalls between the carrying value offixed assets and their recoverable
amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past even! it is probable that
a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount ofthe settlement can be estimated reliably.
Liabilities are recoBnised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has
received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Autust 2024 lcontinuedl

1. Statement of Accoundnt Policies lcontinu€dl

Provisions
Provisions are recotnised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which

it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value ofthose amounts, discounted at the pre-tax

discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwindinB ofthe discount is recognised within interest
payable and similar charges.

Laascd Assets
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all ofthe benefits and risks ofownership remain with the lessor

are charged against profits on a straight line basis over the period ofthe lease.

Financial lnstruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities

of the academv trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Finonciol ossets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised

cost as detailed in the notes. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Finonciol liobilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised

cost as detailed in the notes. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an

obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charivs wholly owned

subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower ofcost or net realisable value, after making due allowance for obsolete and slow moving
items.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 ofthe Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
me€ts the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in resp€ct of income or capitalgains received within
categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 ofthe Taxation of Chargeable

Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the yea. Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedt

1. StatementofAccountingPollcles(Continued)

Penslon Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees ofthe academytrust are provided by the Teacherj pension Scheme (TpS,) and the Local
Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of
the academy trust.

Teachels' Pension Scheme
The TPs is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees, working
lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future
pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a
prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between
employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

Local Govemment Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme, and the assets are held separately from those ofthe academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a
high-quality corporate bond ofequivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplyint the fair value ofthe scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return
on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses

Page 31
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Notes to the Financial statements for the Year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continued)

1. Statement of Accountint Pollcles (Continuedl

Fund Accoundnt
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any ofthe charitable objects of

the academy trust at the discretion ofthe trustees.

School funds that are not otherwise restricted are desiSnated within unrestricted funds.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where

the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise grants, including the General Annual Grant (GAG), and other funding for educational

purposes and any voluntary income to be used for specific purposes.

The Local Government Pension Scheme deficit is recognised against restricted general funds in order to match it against the

GAG, in accordance with Education and Skills Funding Agency guidance.

Details of restricted and unrestricted funds are shown in the notes to the financial statements.

critical accountlnt estimates and aleas otrudt€ment
Estimates and iudgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations offuture events that are believed to be reasonable underthe circumstances.

Criticol occounting estimotes, ossumptions ond iudgements
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and

assumptions will, by definition, seldom equalthe related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.

. The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of facto6

that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net

cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in the

notes, will impact on the carrying amount ofthe pension liability. Furthermore, a rollforward approach which projects

results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the

pensions liability at 31 August 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a

full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount ofthe pension liability.

Furthermore this year the pension asset has been restricted to any surplus of scheme assets over 110% ofthe scheme

liabilities, in line with the schemes funding strategy.

The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful economic lives of property. The useful economic

lives of property, plant and equipment is initially based on the professional valuers report using theirjudgement and

experience. The useful economic lives are assessed annually and changed when necessary to reflect current thinking

on their remaining lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continued)

2. Donations and Capltal Grants Restdcted
Fixed Asset

Funds
E

891,667
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Unrestrlctcd
Funds

E

Restricted
Funds

C

Total
2024

€
891,667

Totel
20:13

e.

48,573ESFA Capital grants
LA Capital grants

Donations - transfer from predecessor trust
Miscellaneous donations
Gifts in kind

1,306 70,496 12,000 23,802
598,368

43,227

1,306 10,496 903,657 911469 730,768

77,794 (158,mO) 870,974 730,168Pr€vious year total

3. Funding for Academy's educational operations

t fEIESFA Grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium

Universal infant free school meals (UtFsM)
Teachers Pay Grant
Teachers Pension Grant
schools supplementary grant
Mainstream schools additional grant
PE Sports Grant
National tutoring programme / mental health grants
Recovery premium grant
Other

Other DfE Group grants

Other Govemmer* Grants
LA funded statements
Nursery income
Other government grants

Catering
Wraparound and nursery lncome
S€hoolfund income
School trips incom€
Other educational income

Previous year total

Unr€silricted
Funds

C

R€stricted
Funds

E

2,366,824

82,O70
93,498
39,299
19,772

76,307
36,600

1,001

7,43A
LO,579

Total
2024

e.

2,366,824

82,O70

93,498
39,299
19,7t2

76,307
35,600

1,001

7,438
10,579

Total
2023

t
2,260,30L

81,450
100,506

1,481
4,746

63,O24
37,793
36,550
10,338

7,365
69,704

to6,474
274,231
27,720

411,765

706,474
278,237
27,120

708,243
218,981
53,148

380,372

75,a32
712,557

75,432
172,557

93,499
57,O45

66,567

48,r32

93,499
57,045

69,150
26,449

188,389 3,295,631 3,4U,O20 3,297,424

154,699 1,142,729 3,297,428

417,765
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continued)

4. Othei Trading Acthrfties Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds

€€
7,563Hire of facilities

Catering lncome
Receipts from staff insurance claims
Risk protection arrangement claims
Other income

6,816

7,563

Page :i4

Total
zo24

€

7,563

6,815

Total
2021

E

8,075

9,652

6,816 74,379 77,727

Previous yeartotal

5. lnvestment lncome

8,075 9,652 77,727

Unrestricted
Funds

f
t,974

Restricted
Funds

E

Total
2024

E

7,974

Total
2023

f
1,O24Bank interest receivable

Other interest receivable
7,97 4 7,974 7,O24

Previous year total 1,o24 7,O24
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 3l August 2024 (continued)

5. Expenditure
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Staff
Costs

E

Total
2023

E

1,615

Non Pay Expenditure
Premises Other Costs

EE
1,513

Total
2024

f
1,513

2,311,909
1,9a6,246
4,294,755

7,200
2,615
5,595

Cost of other trading activities
Academy's educational operations

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

2,165,594
449,4t8

2,655,1t2

29,478
I,1o5,277

716,737
391,551

2,230,O48
7,094r70

Prevaous year total

Net income/(expnnditure for the period indudes:
Depreciation
Operating lease rentals
(Gain)/ loss on disposal offixed assets
Fees payable to current auditor

7. Cost of OtherTrading activltles

Trading activities costs
Heat and light
Maintenance of premlses and equipment

Previous year total

1,134,755 508,288

7,736,26a 508,288 4,299,668

371,085 512,170 3,125,873

2024
E

u,632
3,531

3,324,258

3,325,873

- audit ofthe financial statements
- other assurance services
- other services

20i23

C

84,680
2,958

6,875
2,770
6,310

Unrestricted
Funds

t

Renricted
Funds

E

Total
2024

f

Total
2023

f

1,513 1,513 1,675

7,573 1,513 1,615

1,615

2,655,1t2

2,442,678

1,615
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

8. CharltableActivities
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Direct Costs - educational operations
Teaching and educational support staff costs

Depreciation
Educational supplies
staff development
Other staff costs
Special Facilities
staff insurance
Examination fees
Educational consultancy
Other direct costs

Support Costs - educational operations
Support staff costs

Depreciation
staff development
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Maintenance of premises - clF
Professional Fees

Cleaning
Rates and water
Heat and light
lnsurance
Transport
Catering
TechnoloSy costs
Schoolfiind expenses
School trips & activities
Bad debts
Other support costs

Support Costs - govemance

Audit fees
Accountancy, assurance and other fees
Govemance staff costs
Trustees' training and expenses

Legal fees
Professional fees
Defined benefit pension schemes

service costs less contributions payable
Net pension finance costs

Totel direct and support costs

Previous year total

37,685 37,685 37,254
5,767

4,750 2,307,159 2,37L,909 2,230,088

100,498

Unrestricted
Funds

f

Restricted
Funds

f
2,765,694

29,478
53,071

7,197
1,846
3,772

8,416

Total
2024

€
2,165,694

29,478
s7,827
7,r97
1,846

3,772

a,4L6

Total
20iB

€

2,066,979
29,437
67,649
6,786
2,t39
3,144

16,539

4,750

65,841

45,41L
160,&2 1,833,044 1,993,845 1,058,468

100
400
700

59,104

429,376
55,154

575
82,885

762,590
225

99,979
29,2tr
67,732
73,726

1,686
97,270
83,958

529,a74
55,154

575

82,885
762,590

225
100,079
29,677
61,832
73,126

1,686

150,374
83,958

100,354
333

2L,L90

39t,796
54,U9
3,188

79,742

1,025
100,293

24,655
63,819
t6,ut
6,978

138,578
65,011

100,354
333

21,190

7,200
10,181

8,544

73,475
1,000

(49,OOO)

1,000
(7,600)

7,200
10,181

4,544

13,475
1,000

(49,0O0)

1,000

6,875
10,902

3,843

722
9,350

(20,0o0)
24,OOO

(7,600) 3s,7o2

165,552 4,112,@3 4,29AJSs 3,324,258

r27,930 3,195,328 3,324,258



Learning for life Trust

Notes to the Financiar statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedl

9. Staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the peraod were:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes
Other employee benefits
Apprenticeship levy

Supply staff costs
Staff restructuring costs
Less: seconded out ofthe organisation

2024
€

2,077,785
188,093
439,542
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2021
f

1,850,311
163,803

422,746

2,645,220
9,892

2,436,2@
6,358

Staff restructuring costs comprise;
Redundancy payments
Severance payments
Other restruduring costs

b. Severance payments

The academy trust paid no severance payments in the year, disclosed in the followint bands:

2024

0 - €25,000
€25,001 - f50,000
f50,001 - f100,000
f 1@,001 - €150,000
€1s0,000+

c. specialstaff severance payments - Non statutory/non-contractual staff sevefance payments

lncluded in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling €Nil (2023: €Nil)
lndividually, the payments were €Nil. (2023: fNil)

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period was as follows

No

Chdritoble Activities
Management
Teachers
Administration and support

2023
No
1

30
57
88

2,655,112 2,M2,6tA

2024
No

1

30
58

89
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedl

e. Hidrer paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludint employer pension costs and employer national insurance

contributions) exceeded f60,0O0 was:
2024 202i

No No

€50,000 to f69,999 2

E7O,0OO to €79,999 1

€80,000 to €89,999 1

3 1

The above employee participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31 August 2024 the employer's
pension contributions in respect of this employee amounted to 155,227 12023:878,9371.

f. l(ey manatement p€rsonnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as listed on

page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key mana8ement
personnel for their services to the academy trust was:

2024
E

205,627

zozt
E

tas,72ASenior Management Team

Staff Governors
205,627 785,728
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedt

10. Central S€rvices

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the

' financial services in the form of budgeting and management software and accountancy and auditing. health and safety and facilities management
. legalservices
. educational and safeguarding support services
. centralised software services
. cleaning contract services

The trust charges for these services on the following basis

Each academY was charged 2.5% of their GAG income for the year to cover the core offer. This is reviewed
annually by the MAT board.

The actual amounts charges during the year were as follows 2024
e

96,972
35,541

732,573 45,204

11, Transfers Between Funds

2024
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Fairfield Primary School
Broughton Primary school

Unrestricted funds
Designated catering underspend moved to GAG to cover unallocaied costs
Unrestricted funds used to support individual academy GAG deficits
Unrestricted funds used to support trust GAG/top slice deficits

Renricted general funds
School trips fund (under)/over spend transferred tofrom GAG
UIFSM catering (under)/over spend transferred tofrom GA6
General Annual Grant fund

School trips fund under/(over) spend transferred tofrom GAG
Unrestristed funds used to support individual academy GAG deficits
Unrestricted funds used to support trust cAc/top slice deficits
Fixed assets purchased from GA6 funds
UIFSM catering under/(over) spend transferred to/rom GAG
Designated catering under/(over) spend transfened tofrom GAG

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets used for charitable purposes - purchases from funds per above
DfE/EFA formula grant to Fixed assets fund - purchases offixed assets
Other capital donation to Fixed assets fund - purchases of fixed assets
CIF capital spend to Fixed assets fund - purchases offixed assets

CIF capital spend to Fixed assets fund - purchases of fixed assets
Condition lmprovement fund - receipt of School contributions towards project
Other capital donation to Fixed assets fund - purchases of fixed assets
School contributions to CIF projects from GAG - from DfE/EFA formula grant

2023
e

32,328
72,876

2,ats
(ras38)
122,6661

f

(38,:189)

5,856
2,135

(6,8s6)

18,538

22,666
(2800)
(2,13s)
(2,81s)

2,800

12,000
35,509

26,598

35,589

50,309
(3s,so9)

14,2sol
(12,00o)

4,250
2,&O
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedl

12. Related Party Transactions - TrusteeJ remuneration and expens€s

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the academy

trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the
roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment,

Othertrustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses, from the academy in respect of their role as trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits for the period was as follows:
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chris Steele (Chief Executive Officer)
Remuneration
Employer's pension contributions

f85,000 to 89,999
f2O,OO0 to f24999

(2023: €75,0O0 to 79,999)
(2023: €15,000 to f19,999)

Ouring the period ended 31 August 2024 there were no travel and subsistence expenses reimbursed or paid directly to

trustees (2023: €Nil).

13. Trustees and officers insurance

ln accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and officers from

claims for netlitent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance for the year ended 31

August 2024 provides cover up to €10,000,000 (2023: €10,000,000) on any one loss and any one membership year.

The academys insurance is via the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA) and the cost of this

insurance is included in the total insurance cost. lt is not possible to quantiry the trustees and officers indemnity element

from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year Ended 3l Autust 2024 (continued)

14. Tandble Fixed Arsets
tand &

Buildings
€

2,O92,473

Plant &
Machinery

E

Motor
Vehicles

f
9,466

Fumlture
FittinSs &

Equipment
2

152,065

14,800

tcr
Equipment

€
66,476
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Total

€
2,320,420

50,309

Cost

As at 01 September 2023
Assets acquired from other

academy trusts
Additions
Disposals
As at 3l August 2024

35,509

z,@2,413 35,509 9,466 156,85s 66,476 2,370,729

Depreciation
As at 01 September 2023
Charge in year
Disposals

As at 3l August 2024

376,944
50,647

7,585
477

77,229
24,974

51,163
8,500

572,927
u,632

427,591 8,056 702,143 s9,763 597,553

Net book values
As at 31 August 2024 l,Era,azz 35,509 t,4to 4,722 6,71a 1,773,176

As at 0l September 2023 1,715,469 1,881 74,436 1s,313 7,807,499

594,037 Freehold land & buildings
970,785 l-ong Leasehold land & buildings

t,664,822

Valuation Details
The leasehold land and buildings were valued at f1,369,950 as at O1 August 2015 by Thornburn & Co Ltd RICS Registered
Valuers, who is independent ofthe charitable company. The basis of valuation for the assets was Fair Value using a
Depreciated Replacement Cost approach in accordance with FRSlO2.

Leasehold premises are leased from the local authority on l2s year leases for nil consideration.

lncluded within freehold and leasehold land and buildings is land at the following values:

Freehold Land
Leasehold Land

499,035 499,035

Urgent Electrical Refu rbishment Work
During the year the academy undertook an Urgent Electrical Refurbishment project on the school buildings which was
funded by an ESFA Condition lmprovement Fund grants. The fullcost ofthese proiects have been treated as resources
expended in the statement of Financial Activities and is included in maantenance of premises costs, with the exception of
solar panels totalling E35,509.

2024 202i
ft

t6'1,235 767,235
331.800 331,800
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Notes to the Financaal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

15. Stock

Stationery
Catering

16. Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT re€overable
Prepayments
Accrued income
Other debtors

17, Creditors: Amounts Falling due Within One Yeal

Trade creditors
Taxation and social security
Sundry creditors
ESFA creditor
Accruals
Deferred income

oeferred lncome

Deferred income includes:
Deferred income at 1 September 2023
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years
Deferred income at 31 August 2024

Deferred income comprises:
EFA Rates Funding for I September 2024 to 31 March 2025
EFA Universal lnfants Free School Meals allocation fot 2024/25
High needs funding for 1 September 2024 to 31 March 2025
Schoolfund income for future trips

Page a2

2024
f.

4s00
500

2023
f

4s0o
500

5,000 5,000

2021
f

4,780
4342

34,016
24,306

341
77,785

2024
e

22,977

2023
f

59,818
39,29s
5L,2474,214

2024

67,27t
49,714

(6t,2771

2023

53,305

67,27L
(53,30s)

€f

a9,714 67,277

5,425
54,541
29,348

49,7t4

454,986 55,882
49,714 57,27L

577,89L 267,553

2021
€

2,770
34,357
30,831

607,667
13,054

688,679
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedl

18. Funds Balance at
01-Sep

20i23

f

777 3A9

lncomlng
fesources

2366,a24
42,o70
93,498
39,299
19,772

Resources

expended
Gains, Losses

and Transfurs

Page 43

Balance at
3l-Au8

2024
€

207,567

Ef e

(2,363,2441

l82,O7Ol
(95,533)

(39,299)
(7e,772l.

26,598

2,135

6,856

Restaicted General Funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil premium
Unive6al infant free school meals (UIFSM)

Teachers Pay Grant
Teachers Pension Grant
Schools supplementary grant
Mainstream schools additional grant
PE Sports Grant
National tutoring programme grants
Recovery premium grant
Other DfE/ESFA grants

LA funded statements
Nursey income
Other government grants
School trips fund
Other educational income
Other restricted general funds

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
Fixed assets used for charitable purposes
DfE/ESFA formula capital
Other ESFA capital grants
Capital donations
ESFA condition improvement funds
Fencing & office safeguarding proiect

50,309
74,577

12,000
877,O90 (762,s90)

55
7,823,620 903,667 (862,2491 2,800

4&00o
14,tt2,@tl

(48,0O0)

eoor"(xrg 4,216,510

76,307
35,600

1,001

7,438
to,579

106,414
278,231
27,120
93,498
53,861
70,497

(76,301)
(36,600)

(1,001)

(7,438)
(10,579)

(106,414)

1278,2311
(27,7201

(10o,3s4)
(63,861)
(10,4971

777 349

7,807,499

16,066

3,312,943 (3,318,354) 35,589

(84,632)
(74,s77l.

(4s0) 14,2sol
(12,00o)
(31,2se)

207,567

7,773,776

11,365

83,247
55

1,8!7,!338
Restdcted Pension Reserve Funds
Pension reserve fund
Total Restricted Funds (9,511) 2,0,5,&5

Unrestricted Funds

Unrestricted general funds
Unrestricted conversion surplusfund
Designated catering fund
Designated wraparound and nursery fund
Designated schoolfund
Total Unrestricted Funds

217,164 10,843

75,432
712,557

(1,s13)

(78,647l.
(85,90s)

l41,20!.l

2,475

779,290

83,155 108,807

294,319 tg),2?2 lt57,055) (3E,3891 2las,Ogit

Total Funds 429s,328 4A15,442 (4299,6681

Under the funding agreement with the secretary of State, the academy trust was not subiect to a limit on the amount of
General Annual crant (GAG) that it could carry forward at 31 August 2024.

2,t6t,so2
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Pag. tl4

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows

Gener.l Annual Grant (GAGI fund
This represents the core funding for the educational activities of the school that has been provided to the academy via the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Pupil premium fund
This represents funding paid by the DfE to support disadvantaged students in their teaching and leaming, with the aim of
improving their attainment and closing the gap with more advantaged students.

Teachers pay and pension grants

Teachers pay grant is provided to support teacher pay awards. Teachers pension grant is provided to support the increase in

employer contributions to the Teachers' Pension Scheme from September 2019.

Defined benefit pension scheme fund
This represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) at the year end. For details of the delicit
payment plan see the pensions note.

Local authority f unded statements
This represents funding from the Local Authority to pay for Learning Support Assistants who support the "statemented"
special needs students.

t{ursery income fund
This represents funding from the Local Authority to pay for a 30 place nursery for 3hrs every day.

Restricted school tunds (including trips)
This relates to schooltrips and other activities

Fixed assets us€d for charitable purposes

This represents the value and movements on Tangible Fixed Assets note

DfElEsFA formula capital fund
This represents funding from the ESFA to be used for capital projects

ESFA condition improvement funds
This represents funding from the ESFA to be used for specilic capital proiects

Designated caterint
This fund relates to the provision of school meals and refreshments that are charged to pupils. The academy also receives

Universal lncome Free School Meals (UIFSM) income which goes to this designated fund.

Desitnated wraparound fund
This fund relates to the provision of wraparound clubs that are charged to pupils

Funds in Deficlt
At the balance sheet date the scheme is in surplus perthe FRS101/102 pension scheme accounting figures, however the 31

March 2022 actuarial valuation of the fund showed that the scheme was still in deficit and annual deficit contribution
payments are required to be made to the scheme.

The Trust has entered into an agreement effective from 1 April 2023 to make additional contributions in addition to normal
funding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will be made over 10 years from l April 2023, includinge24,S@ fot
2023124, E25,3OO in 2024125 and E26,@O in 2025126.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedl

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balance at 3l August 2024 were allocated as follows

Fairfield Primary School
Broughton Primary School
Central Services

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve

2024
€

432,549
(38,040)

10t15s

Page 45

202t
E

333,293
74,606

123,809
495,564

7,867,838

47L,70A

7,423,610Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve fund
Total

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows

Othe, Costs
(excluding

dep'nl 2024 2o2t
EEC

1,204,247 3,205,511 2,297,U9
t72,4L6 499,776 883,792
76,M6 709,749 5s,5s2

1l4s3r193 4215,036 3,24,.,193

Fairfield Primary School
Broughton Primary School

CentralServices
Academy Trust

Teaching &
Educational other

Suppon Staff Suppod Staff
Costs Costs

Ee.
7,576,629 384,377
560,747 749,076
2A,27A 5,025

2,165,6p4 538,418

Educational

supplies
E

40,324
77,497

57,82L

2,t63,502 2,295,32A
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Resoulces
expended

Gains, Loss€s

and Transfers

Pag€ 45

Balance at
3l-Aut

2021
C

t77,389

Crmparetlve informatior in respect of the precedlng period is as follows:
Balanceat lncomint

Ol-Sep resouloes
2022

EE
Restdcted General Funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 80,545 2,2603;07
Pupilpremium - 81,460
Universal infant ftee school meals (U|FSM) 100,506
Other DfEIESFA grants - 2O6,74a

COVlDlg additionaltunding (ESFA,/DfE) - 17,703
LA funded statements - loa,243
Nursey income - 2lA,9A1
Other Sovernment grants - 53,1118

Schooltrips fund - 69,749
Other educational income - 36,747
Other restricted general funds - 5,401

t f

(2,182,858)
(81,460)
(98,098)

(206,7481

177,7031
(108,243)

(218,981)
(s3,148)
(6s,841)
(36,141)

(s,401)

19,400

(2,4O8)

(3,308)

80,546

I,067,247

3,7s7,781 13,0?4,6221 r3,684

80,951
(r"96s)

777 349

7,401,499

16,055

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds

Fixed assets used for charitable purposes
DfE/ESFA formula capital
Other ESFA capital grants

Capital donations
ESFA condition improvement funds
Fencing & office safeguarding project

l7s,s76l

55 55

(3s1,00o) (164,000) (4,00o) 519,000
535,694796,888 t86,,,Tss (3,196,3281

198,353 26,893 (1,51s) (72,4571, 277,L64

743,941
20,270
30,747
75,976

(84,680)
(18,30s)

.74,7271

Rgtrlcted Pension ReserYe Funds
Pension reserve fund
Total Restrlcted Funds

Unrestrlcted Funds
Unrestricted general funds
Unrestricted conversion surplus fund
Designated catering fund
Designated wraparound and nursery fund
Designated schoolfund
fotal Unrestricted Funds

Total Funds

60,513
66,567

48,132 83,155

25t 955 181.592 (129,!451 (16,6e4) 29,,,tte

{6s,446}
(62,48/1

lt,tztl
(3,106)

I,067,342 870,974 ILLT,7O61 3,010 1,823,620

1,055154 4,W 7 (3,325,8731 s19,(m 2,295,?2A
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

19. Analysis of l{€t Assets Between Funds

Fund balances at 3l August 2024 are represented by:

368,873
(161,306)

Renricted
Fixed Asset

Funds
f

t,773,t76
505,247

(410,s8s)

Page 47

Total
Funds

€
1,773,t76
I,162,277
(571,891)

Unrestricted
Funds

E

Restricted
General

Funds
e.

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme asset / liability
Total Net Assets

248,@7

Comparative information in respect ofthe precedlnt period is as follows;

28,,O97 207!507 1,867,838

U nrestricted
Funds

I

Renrlcted
General

Funds

t

294,379 436,015
(2s8,625)

Restricted
Fixed Asset

Funds

e.

7,407,499
25,O48
(8,s271

Total
Funds

t
L,4O7,499

755342
(267,553)

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme asset / liability
Total Net Assets 29tt,lE 177 ,itag \a2i,620 2,295,3'24
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

20. Long-term commltnents, including under opetating leases

21, Gpital Commitments

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements

Pag6 tl8

Operating Leases

At the balance sheet date the total ofthe Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases was:

2024 2023
Assets other than land & buildings f €

Amounts due within one year 3,171 3,297
Amounts due between one and five yearc 7,5f4 71,057
Amounts due after five years

10,585 74,354

land and property leases
The leasehold land and buildings are subiect to a 125 year lease with Cumbria County Council. Although a peppercorn
rent may be demanded, no such rent has been demanded to date.

2024
t

43,241
43,241

202i|
€

The Academy entered into contracts relating to the following proiect:

Urgent Electrical Refurbishment works proiect
During the year the academy entered into a contract for urgent electrical refurbishment works at Fairfield School. The

academy was committed to a further cost of f83,241 at the year end. The capital element and repairs element is fNil and
€83,241 respectively.

Zl. Members' Liability

Each member ofthe charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or whhin one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding €10 as stated in memorandum and articles of association for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

23. Pension and Similar Oblitations

The academy trust's employees belon8 to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which
is managed by Your Pension Service (YPS) for Cumbria County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial
valuation ofthe TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions payable to the schemes at 31 August and included in creditors were as follows:
2024 2021

t
3,.,122
tL,743
42,865

The total pension costs to the academy during the year ended 31 August and included in staff costs were as follows

E

Teacher5' Pension Scheme
Local covernment Pension Scheme

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme
Local Government Pension Scheme deficit recovery
LGPS current service cosvcontributions adjustment

2024
C

300,772
163,935
24,834

(49,000)

2023
€

254,294
743,136

40,716
(20,0o0)

439,942 422,146

Teachers' Pension Scheme

lntroduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'

Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All teachers have the option to
opt-out ofthe TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributiont as a percentage of salary -
these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds
provided bv Parliament.

Valuation ofthe Teacherd Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance
with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4
years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed appropriately and the review specilies
the level of future contributions,

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value offuture costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report was
published bv the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional
investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPl. The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

. Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy). This is an

increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change in member benefits is

needed,

. Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the
effective date of E262,OOO million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together wath the notional
investments held at the valuation date) of 8222,2OO million, EivinB a notional past service deficit of€39,800 million
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continued)

23. Pensions and Similar oblilatlons (contlnuedl

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due to be implemented from
1 April 2028.

The employe/s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to C300,172 (2O23t 8258,2941.

A copy ofthe valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi€mployer pension scheme. The academy trust is

unable to identiry its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the academy trust has taken
advantage ofthe exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above, the information available on the scheme

Local GoYcmment Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefrt pension schemg with the assets held in separate trudee-administered tunds. The

total contributions made for the year ended 3l August were as follows:
2024 202i

EE
Employer's contributions 163,936 143,135
Lump sum deficit contributions 24,A34 40,716
Employees' contributions 47,OO9 42,210
Total contributions 235,T19 226,062

depending on pay bands.

Parliament has agre€d, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an

academy trust closure, outstanding Local Govemment Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed
its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

At the balance sheet date the scheme is in surplus per the FRS101/102 pension scheme accounting figures, however the 31

March 2022 actuarial valuation ofthe fund showed that the scheme was still in deficit and annual deficit contribution
payments are required to be made to the scheme.

The Trust has entered into an agreement effective from l April 2023 to make additional contributions in addition to normal
funding levels. lt is anticipated that the payments will be made over 10 years from 1 April 2023, including €31,500 for
2023124, e12,SN in 2024l7s and E33,4OO in 2025126.
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23. Pensions and Similar Oblitations (continuedl

Local Govemment Pension Scheme (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions are:

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
lnfl ation assumption (CPl)

Page 51

Deficit
/ (Surplusl

(17s,000)
(s400o)
(ss,00o)

(17400o)
(s4,000)

(17s,00o)

Ar 31
August

2024
Change

(60,0o0)
61,000
50,000

(s9,0o0)

61,000
(50,0o0)

At 3l
August

2024

Deficit
/ (Surplusl

(77,000)
28,000
25,000

(74m0)
28,000

l77,OOOI

At 31

August
20i23

At 31
August

2021
Change

(s2,0o0)
53,000
50 000

(49,000)
53,000

{s2,0oo)

4.to%
2.70%
5.00%
2.@%

4.30%
2.9@6

5.30%
2.8M

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed
life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 At 31
Autust August

2024 2023
Retiring todoy

Males

Females
Retiting in 20 yeors

Males
Females

Sensitivity analysis
The table below, as produced by Mercer sets out the impact of a small change in assumptions on the defined benefit
obligation. The figures are based on the surplus /deficit in the scheme before any surplus restriction.

21.4
23.9

2,..4
23.8

22.7
25.6

22.7
25.6

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption - l year increase
Mortality assumption - l year decrease
CPI rate + 0.1%
CPI rate - 0.1%
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continuedl

23. Pensions and Simila; Oblltadons (continuedl

Local Goveanment Pension scheme lcontinuedl

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were: Fairvalue
at 31 August

2024
E

Equity instruments
Equities

Debt instruments
Government bonds
Other bonds

Property
Cash/liquidity
Other

Page 52

Fair rralue
at 31 August

20Lt
€

1,143,000 1,023,000

461,0fi) 342,NO

244,@O

69,000
1,216,000

213,000
59,000

1,055,000

Total Market Value of Assets

Present value of scheme liabilities
Funded

Unfunded
Surplus / (deficitl In the scheme

Surplus restriction
Surplus / (deficitl recognised in the financial statements

Current service cost (net of employee contributions)
Net interest cost
Administration expenses
Past service (cost)/gain
Gain/(loss) on curtailment
Gain/(loss) on seftlement
Total operating charBe

Other recognised gains and (lossesl

Remeasurements (liabilities)
Remeasurements (assets)

Surplus restriction movement

3,133,000 2,692,W

(3,018,000) (2,667,000)

115,000 25,000
(11s,00o) {?s,0o0l

Surplus Reslrictlon
As noted above the actuary has valued the academy's share ofthe cumbria LGPS to be a surplus of €115,000. The trust has

not recognised this surplus as an asset as FRSlo2 states that a surplus can only be recognised to the extent that it reduces

future contributions. The rate of future contributions are set at the triennial reviews of the LGPt the last one was at 31

March 2022. ln the supporting valuation reports, this stated that only surpluses over 110% of liabilities are able to be

returned to scheme participants through reduced future contributions. ln the academy's case the assets do not exceed

110% ofthe liabilities, therefore, under the scheme's current funding strategy the academy cannot reduce its future
contributions.

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was f234,0O0 (2023: €109,000).

None ofthe fair values ofthe assets shown above include any ofthe academy's own financial instruments or any property

occupied by, or other assets used by, the academy.

Amounts recognised in the statement offinancial activities 2024
E

(13s,000)
6,000

(7,0o0)

20;LX

E

(171,000)
(18,0O0)

(600o)

(1!EpSE {191@S}

2024
E

(44,OOO)

85,000
(90,000)

2023
E

394,000
150,000
(2s,000)

Total amount recognis€d in the SOFA (/8,000) 519,000
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Notes to the Financaar statements for the year Ended 31 Autust 2024 (continued|

23. Penslons and Slmllar Obligations (continuedl

Local Govamment pensbn Sdlellre (continuedl

Chantes in the (surplusl / defich in the year:

(Surplus)/ oeficit in scheme at beginning ofperiod
Transferred in on existing academies joining the academy trust
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Employer contributions
Past service (cost)/gain
Actuarial (tain)/oss - Remeasurements
Administration expenses
lnterest income
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Mdt / lsurplusl at 3l August ZO24

Surplus restriction
Mch / (Surplusl r€cognised in the ffnancial statements

2024
C

(2s,m0)

135,000
142,m0

(r84,0o0)

(42,m0)
7,mo

(148,mO)

Pate 53

20i23

€
351,000
164,000
171,0(x)

119,000
(191,000)

(s44,00o)

6,@O
(101,0o0)

(11tmol
115,(xX)

25,mO)
25,000

Chantes in the pres.nt y.lue of detrned benetrt oblEatons werc as follows:

At beginnint of period
Transferred in on existing academies joining the academy trust
Current service cost
lnterest cost
Employee contributions
Past service (cost)/gain
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Remeasurements
Benefits / transfers paid
Plan introductions, benefit changet curtailments and settlements
Benefit obllgatlon at 3l Au8ust 2024

Changes in the fait yalue of Acad€myrs share of scheme assets:

At beginning of period
Transferred in on existing academies ioining the academytrust
lnterest income
Administration expenses
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Remeasurem€nts
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits / transfers paid
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Scheme assets at 3l August 2024

2024
t

.2,66,7,@ol

(135,0O0)

(142,000)
(42000)

(44,0O0)

17,000

2023
C

(1,9s1,00o)
(792,000)

(171,000)
(119,0O0)
(42,000)

394,m0
14,000

(3,018,00O) (2,667,Wl

20?4
e

2,692,M

2023
f

1,600,0m
628,mO
101,000

(6,000)
150,00o
r91,000
42,000

(14000)

trla,fi)o
(7,0o0)
86,000

184,m0
47,@O

(17,0O0)

3,139,0o0 2,692,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continuedt

24. Related Party Tr.nsactions

Owint to the nature of the academytrust and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from local public and
private sector organisations, transactions maytake place with ortanisations in which the trustees have an interest,

All transactions involving such orBanisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements ofthe AFH, including
notifyint the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with
the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.

The followlng related party transactions took place in the period of account:

CrFndlture Related Party Transactions

Grcat Broudrton Out of Sdtool Oub Limited (controlled by governoB at Broughton)
During the year the Academy Trust paid €1,295 (2023: E3,O76l to Great Broughton Out ofSchool Oub Limited for the
provision of after schoolcare for pupils. There was no rent received from the OOSC for the use ofthe academy's
facilities.

The trustees are reviewing the agreement with the OOSC at present to confirm this is conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the AFH.

Related party transactions with staffgovernors are detailed in an earlier note

25, Contlnt€nt Asset

The Trust has worked with the Trustees of the Benny walker Charitable Trust to seek their agreement to frJnd a sports
pavilion on land already owned by the Trust. This agreement has been reached and is contingent on the Trust achieving
suitable planning permission and entering into contract for the delivery ofthe scheme. The moneys will be paid to fund
each invoice being paid during the construction period. The Trust is therefore progressing planning permission and also
preparing a tender for the construction contract. The Trust is not contractually committed and can control if it proceeds
with the project. As a result, there is a contingent asset in this regard as it is more likely than not that such an inltow of
benefits will occur, but is not yet virtually certain.


